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Also 

We have just 
gotten back 
from a 
wonderful 
weekend 
with the A’S 
R US family 
to Le Clair 
Iowa. The weather 
was forecasted as a pretty wet 
weekend. We had no rain at all and the ride was getting 
hot in the car.  Thank goodness for 5 point air-conditioning. Out of the 17 cars 
that went we came back with 17 and only a couple problems.  

 Now that we are back the final preparations for 100 Years of  “Driving The 
Dixie” are under way and there are a few new things to do. See you soon, 

Phil 

A’sRUS Ford Club 

The Carp, Editor in Chief 

BACKFIRE 

Heading thru Joliet, IL towards Iowa. 

http://www.as-r-us.com 
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Presidents 
Comments 

Driving the Dixie is just about upon us. 
Remember we need all hands available for this. 
During the May meeting we need people to sign 
up for this once a year event. Please save the 
date!   

The trip in May to LeClaire Iowa is going to 
be a fun trip. My car is ready, and pulling a new 
to me larger trailer that is set up for my 
personal taste is all set.  

I am so happy after the April meetings tech 
talk. Why you ask. Because I think that the 
hands on tech talks are working. Jon Lisota 
brought several ready to go water pumps, along 
with the necessary parts to rebuild them. Steve 
Coe and Tim Dionne spent the time putting them 
into ready to go status. Bob Steinmetz and 
Randy Senkpeil were assisting in the rebuilding 
process. Even tho they were already apart and 
sandblasted, the whole tech procedure was a 
success. They got their hands dirty, and gave 
them the ability to do it themselves if necessary. Thanks to all who 
participated. 

The May tech talk and meeting, to be held at the Steinmetz Auto Facility 
in Frankfort, will encompass the viewing, disassembly of the crank bearings, 
and plastic gauging of the lower ends of 2 engines. One is an engine I 
purchased last year and is supposedly rebuilt with little mileage about 30 
years ago. The other is an engine Bob has and I believe it’s the one he uses 
for demonstrations. As we have tried this before, it was difficult because the 
motor was still in a car. This will make things more viewable and easier for all 
to see. If you have never heard of or seen a torque wrench in action, this tech 
talk will be for you.   

Randy suggested an upcoming tech talk that needs to be attended. 
Almost every trip some ones points go out of adjustment, or may need to be 
replaced. So for that Bobs portable engine will be brought to a meeting and a 
tune up will be done. How to adjust plugs, install them properly, along with 
the points replacement and adjustments.  

If you have a suggestion for a tech talk, let someone know. Now go get 
you A out into you’re A. 

 
Ken aka “Squeaks” 
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DIXIE HIGHWAY HERITAGE 
By Jim Wright 

At long last, after almost 2 years, the first Dixie Highway interpretive 
sign was installed in Blue Island on May 7th.   The sign is located in a 
park on the east side of Western Avenue (Dixie Highway) just north of 
York Street.  It is one of 12 signs to be produced from proceeds from 
the Drivin' the Dixie through the generosity and the collaborative efforts 
of the A's R Us and the community groups responsible for organizing 
the annual event. The sign was installed courtesy of the City of Blue 
Island.  More signs should be installed by the Drivin' the Dixie.  
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DIXIE HIGHWAY HERITAGE 
By Jim Wright 

Dixie Highway connected Chicago to 
Miami in the early days of automobile travel

Ancient origins
The portion of Dixie Highway running through 

Chicago Heights predates any type of vehicular 
travel with its origins dating back to ancient 
times. This early track way or ‘Trace’ was created 
over time by millions of bison migrating from the 
Great Lakes south. It is easily understandable 
how this Buffalo Trace would be utilized by Native 
American Indians for centuries traveling through 
the area as well. Later, this same ancient trace 
would be utilized by European trappers and traders 
first moving into the Illinois territory followed by 
American settlers during our nation’s westward 
migration.

A portion of this well- worn trail way stretching 
from the town of Vincennes, Indiana located along 
the Wabash River and stretching northward to the 
southern shore of Lake Michigan and the future 
site of Chicago would come to be known as the 
Vincennes Trace. In 1818 a young fur trader by 
the name of Gurdon Hubbard would make his way 
to Chicago and forge a path between these two 
early trading posts leaving a profound legacy in the 
development of Chicago. His famous ride of 1827 
to Danville, Illinois to gain help for the people of Ft. 
Dearborn during the Indian Winnebago War gave 
rise to another name for the trace – Hubbard’s 

Trail. Shortly thereafter in 1835,the Illinois General 
Assembly would establish its first state identified 
roadway – Illinois Route 1, ‘The Chicago Road’. 
This well-traveled route from Vincennes to Chicago 
would lay the foundation for the future Dixie 
Highway. 

Dixie Highway Association
Following the example of the earlier Lincoln 

Highway, in 1915 the Dixie Highway Association 
was created to establish a north-south motorway 
route through the central United States. Initially a 
network of interconnected paved roads rather than 
a single highway, its route was marked by a red 
stripe with the letters ‘DH’ on it – commonly with a 
white stripe above and below - often simply painted 
on utility poles along the way.

Chicago Heights – Crossroads Of The Nation
The development of Chicago Heights, Illinois 

began in the 1830s as pioneers came into the 
area and settled along the banks of Thorn Creek. 
Throughout the 1840s this early settlement grew 
slowly and came to be known as Thorn Grove. 
In 1849 the name of the village was changed to 
Bloom. The 1853 branch construction of the Joliet 
and Northern Indiana Railroad through town and its 

further connection to the city of Chicago in 1869 
by the Chicago and Eastern Illinois Railroad set the 
stage for future growth.

The transformation of the rural, agricultural 
village of Bloom into the city of Chicago Heights 
came about through the efforts of the Chicago 
Heights Land Association. In 1891, the Association 
headed by Charles Wacker, bought 4000 acres 
of land assembled from local farmers. The 
Association laid out industrial sites as well as an 
entire residential community. Heavy industries were 
enticed to the area through the gift of land, free 
water, free rail switching facilities, and low taxes. 
To attract workers to the community the Land 
Association began to segregate industrial uses on 
the level east side of the city, and business and 
residential neighborhoods on the wooded, rolling 
west side. 

The name of the village was changed to Chicago 
Heights in 1892 to recognize its proximity to 
Chicago and to note its elevation as one of the 
highest in the county. The promoters were so 
successful that it was reported in 1893 that 
within one year 15 large and prosperous factories 
had located in Chicago Heights and it had nine 
hotels, two banks, schools, churches, five depots 
and 21 miles of macadamized streets. Their 

success continued 
and by the turn of the 
century there were 
67 manufacturing 
establishments
employing 1,529 
workers and a 
population of 5,100. 

Chicago Heights: from ancient 
trailway to crossroads of the nation

Chicago Southland Chapter: 
Model A Ford Club of America

DH
This sign celebrates the 2015 centennial of the Dixie Highway and 
was made possible by the cooperative efforts of the A’s R Us and 
Blue Island, Posen, Markham, Hazel Crest, Homewood, Flossmoor, 
Chicago Heights, Steger, Crete, Beecher, Grant Park and Momence.

This 1925 map 
published by the 
Chicago Heights 
Chamber of 
Commerce clearly 
illustrated the 
intersection of the 
Lincoln and Dixie 
Highways at the 
city’s center. Note 
the original route 
of Dixie Highway as 
it enters Chicago 
Heights from the 
north. Originally 
travelers were 
required to turn 
east and travel 
a short distance 
down Joe Orr Road 
before continuing 
south on Chicago 
Road/Dixie Highway 
through downtown.

The Lincoln-Dixie Theater opened on June 23, 1921 and it could accommodate 2,500 
guests for vaudeville, opera, and cinematic performances. Note the flagpole with its 
Dixie/Lincoln Highway marker in the foreground. (Courtesy of the Chicago Heights 
Public Library)

As The Star newspaper cartoon of 1915 proudly illustrates, with the intersection of the 
nation’s two largest transcontinental highway systems at its center, Chicago Heights 
would become “The Crossroads of the Nation.” (Courtesy of Jim Wright)

This flagpole marked with both the Dixie and Lincoln Highway insignias was located in the center of Chicago Road/Dixie Highway at its intersection with Illinois Street. This section of Dixie 
Highway, running north from Sauk Trail to 14th Street, was also co-aligned with the original Lincoln Highway route. (Courtesy of the Lincoln Highway Association Collection/University of Michigan)

With its soaring tower, this ornate art deco structure has been listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places for its architectural significances and is also included on the 
Society of Architectural Historians register of top 100 significant buildings in Illinois. 
Bloom High School was erected during the early 1930s as part of a Great Depression 
Era WPA project. On February 6, 1934 students slid their desks from ‘Old Bloom’ to the 
completed ‘New Bloom.’ (Courtesy of Bloom High School)

 

Dixie Highway connected Chicago to 
Miami in the early days of automobile travel

Following a path worn by buffalo, 
Native Americans traveled the length 
of the eastern border of Illinois. 
French fur trapper-traders utilized 
the same trail. Gurdon Saltonstall 
Hubbard, a fur trader for John Jacob 
Astor’s American Fur Trading Company, 
became legendary as “Swiftwalker” 
and established trading posts between 
Chicago and Vincennes, Indiana. The 
route was identified as “Hubbard’s 
Trail” on early maps. Suspecting the 
Winnebagos were going to attack 
Fort Dearborn in July 1827, Hubbard 
rode 140 miles to Danville, Illinois 
in 20 hours to recruit a company of 
Vermillion County Rangers. In 1835, 
the Illinois General Assembly ordered 
a state road to be established and 
Hubbard’s Trail was selected as the 
most favorable route - Route 1 - and 
mile markers were placed along 
it. Hubbard was a close friend of 
Abraham Lincoln’s and constructed the 
“Wigwam” in Chicago where Lincoln 
was nominated for president.

Settlements developed along the 
route with the first residents arriving 
in this area in the 1830s and 1840s 
to farm the fertile soil. James Hart 
platted Hartford as the first subdivision 
in 1853 the same year the first Illinois 
Central Railroad train came through. 
The railroad designated the stop as 
Thornton Station.  Thornton Flour Mill 
Company (1856), general stores and 

taverns opened to serve the residents. 
As the settlement’s importance 
increased, and to prevent a mix-up of 
the mail, the US Post Office changed 
the name to Homewood in 1869. 
Homewood was incorporated in 1893.

By 1915 automobile travel became 
increasingly popular for business, 
agricultural, and recreational 
uses. Citizens demanded that the 
government provide better roads, which 
at this time consisted primarily of dirt 
and were passible in fair weather, yet 
quickly became muddy and impassible 
after a few hours of rain. Governors 
from several states met to consider 
an improved road from Indianapolis to 
Florida. States lobbied for inclusion, 
so instead of a single route, two 
major divisions were designated. 
Carl Fisher, a civic booster, an auto 
enthusiast instrumental in developing 
the Indianapolis Speedway, a Florida 
land developer, and called the “Father 
of the Lincoln Highway,” convinced 
the governors that Chicago should be 
the northern terminus. The great Dixie 
Highway was born. 

By the turn of the century, golf 
courses sprouted in Homewood’s 
countryside and wealthy Chicago 
golfers developed two golf courses 
in Homewood: Ravisloe Country 
Club in 1901, and Calumet Country 
Club relocated here from Chicago in 
1917. In the 1920s, Amalfi Gardens, 

a restaurant at 175th and Dixie 
Highway, drew visitors from as far away 
as Chicago. After several different 
owners, it became Surma’s Restaurant 
(1946-2003) and still operates as a 
restaurant today. 

Dixie Highway became Homewood’s 
main thoroughfare. A white frame two-
room school built in 1880 now houses 
businesses and apartments just north 
of this sign. Next to the building is a 
Dixie Highway mileage sign post. On 
this site known as Independence Park, 
a four-room, two-story brick building 
named Standard School was built in 
1904. An underpass was constructed 
under Dixie Highway so students 
could cross the highway safely. The 
Homewood Village Hall, at Dixie 
Highway and Chestnut Road, was built 
with the aid of PWA funds and was 
dedicated in September 1939. It is 
considered an architectural gem. 

In 1998 the Village of Homewood 
Heritage Committee sought the 
cooperation of the Illinois Dixie 
Communities to promote the heritage 
of the highway. The result was Dixie 
Highway signs, street pole banners, an 
Illinois State Historical Society marker 
and starting in 2002 the “Drivin’ the 
Dixie,” a vintage and collector car tour, 
supported by A’s R US Model A Ford 
Car Club and Tri-Town Radio Amateur 
Club. For more information, visit 
Homesweethomewood.com

Chicago Southland Chapter: 
Model A Ford Club of America

DH
This sign celebrates the 2015 centennial of the Dixie Highway and 
was made possible by the cooperative efforts of the A’s R Us and 
Blue Island, Posen, Markham, Hazel Crest, Homewood, Flossmoor, 
Chicago Heights, Steger, Crete, Beecher, Grant Park and Momence.

Ravisloe
Country 
Club was 
established
in 1901. 
The Spanish 
Mission-style
clubhouse,
completed
in 1917, 
is a south 
suburban
landmark.

Homewood Service Garage, built in 1924 on the west side of Dixie Highway just south of Ridge Road, sold Standard Red Crown Gasoline. Some early auto owners stored their vehicles here 
because they did not have garages to accommodate them at home.

Looking north, circa 1920, the Dixie Highway had already been paved at this 
intersection with Main Street now called Ridge Road. Concrete paving on the highway 
in Homewood was completed in 1917. Two old tavern buildings dating to the 1850s 
occupied the west side of the road.

Homewood’s first traffic signal was installed in the center of the intersection of the 
Dixie Highway and Main Street (Ridge Road). Cook County Trust and Savings Bank, on 
the right, opened for business in 1925, replacing the pioneer tavern that had previously 
occupied the site. The Signal was removed after being struck too many times.

The Illinois Central Railroad train station, built in 1923, reflects the 
Spanish Mission Style architecture of the clubhouse of Ravisloe Country 
Club. Today, a locomotive engine and caboose are on display on the 
west side of the tracks and a rail viewing platform with speaker system 
announcing freight train activity is located on the east side.

Homewood: a bustling town 
grows along a former Indian trail

The Homewood Garage 
was renovated into the 
Homewood Theater,  
opening in November of 
1937 with the musical 
comedy “Double or 
Nothing” starring Bing 
Crosby and Martha Raye. 
Demolished in 1992, the 
theatre is depicted in a 
Richard Haas mural.
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A’S R US MEETING MINUTES 

APRIL 15, 2015 
                                                           
 
MEETING LOCATION:    Ken and Dale Chamis hosted this meeting with 22 
members present 
 
CALL TO ORDER BY PRESIDENT KEN CHAMIS AT 7:10PM.  March minutes 
were read by Sandy and approved as read. 
 
TREASURERS REPORT:   
Jim reported the Driving the Dixie account is $7,805.98 and the A’s account 
is $8,966.46.  He also stated $247.50 has been deducted from the Dixie 
account as ½ of the payment for Blue Islands Driving the Dixie signage.  
This report was approved as given. 
 
FAMILY NEWS:  
SANDY updated the membership on Al’s Spinal Stenosis.    
Tim B stated Connie is recovering nicely.   
 
KEN reported that Ken McNealey has had surgery for skin cancer and he 
and Arlene are hoping to join us for the Spring trip.   
  
IRV reported that Paul Hankowitz has had 5 cardiac stents recently. 
 
OLD BUSINESS:     
RONALD MCDONALD HOUSE: 
 has been confirmed for June 15, 2015 and it will be a Chuck Wagon Meal.    
 
SPRING TRIP: 
 Jon reported the rooms are full but Tim stated we are able to book a room at 
the Super 8, next door to the Comfort Inn.  Group will leave on May 15th from 
the Wilmington Restaurant at 9:00AM, for more information check our 
website and March Newsletter.   
 
GRINDERS GAME:  
is scheduled for October 4th.  Meet at Hobart Field at 12:00.  Bring your 
lunch, drinks and goodies to share.  Game starts at 2:00PM.   
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A’S R US MEETING MINUTES 
APRIL 15, 2015 

                                                           
DRIVING THE DIXIE:   
Ken read a sample registration/disclaimer form for the event.  With a minor 
change it was approved.   
 
Karen stated she doesn’t have 2014’S registrations for participant’s 
addresses/emails.  Bob stated he will check the boxes he has.   Participation 
is $15.00 again this year.   
 
PHIL stated the Website is being changed to reflect the distinctive events 
that are happening in each community, eg: participants will be involved in 
judging a car show in one community.  Details will follow.  Sign up for June 
20th  
 
Driving the Dixie will be at the next meeting, we need all members to 
participate.    
 
KEN: reported that he was unable to find an insurance company willing to 
cover a co-sponsored event at an affordable cost.   
 
 JIM :reported 5 communities have their signage layout, 4 are ready for 
graphics and 3 have yet to respond.  He is hopeful that the signage will be up 
in Blue Island for Driving the Dixie.  Conversation followed regarding 
dedication of the signs.  Jim suggested to have all dedications on the 8th & 9th 
of October on our way to Danville for our Fall Trip.  Jim is checking in to 
something for the club to sell, T-shirts, hats, visors etc. 
  
 BOB: reminded the members that this Saturday is the WW11 breakfast event 
at Durbin’s, 173rd and Oak Park, 9:00 AM arrival.    
 
KEN reported that the Soup Kitchen event was a big success, over 80 people 
attended and the food was great.  JON stated more info will follow regarding 
the Picnic, on June 28th.  He did contact the Calumet A’s Club but hasn’t had 
a response yet.  FALL TOUR, Jim stated more info will follow.  
  
KEN thanked Bob for hosting the preseason Tune up Clinic and Jon for his 
expertise.  It was an overall success and cars are running better.   
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REMINDER: Send pics and articles for our website to Al B 
allan@swicago.com.   To view our Web Site just click here: www.as-r-
us.com  
 
NEW BUSINESS: PHIL reported that the 2015 Exposure Trip to Door County 
is planned for September 13th to the 20th.  Those who are interested should 
call him for Hotel Information.  
IRV stated that he heard via the grapevine that Chuck Miller has the copy of 
our Club Charter.   Ken stated he will check into getting that copy or a new 
one from the state. 
 
NEW PROPOSALS :   
BOB stated there is a 1950 circa movie being made on Church Rd this 
Friday & Saturday.  They are looking for a Model A.  Phil said he will call 
them.   
BOB stated he received a letter from St. Damians Church in Oak Forest, 
requesting we participate in their 1st Annual Classic Car Show in 
conjunction with their Block Party on Saturday August 1st.  No decision was 
made.    
KEN made mention that we have been invited to attend St James of Sac 
In Lemont, Annual festival on June 14th from 12:00 on.   
MARLENE  is interested in selling a radio for $50.00 and has donated a box 
of period clothes and hats.  If interested contact Bob abssurplus@aol.com.  
 
BREAKFAST: Saturday May 2nd , 8:30am Peachtree Restaurant. 
50/50:  $54.00    $27.00 to Tim/Pat and $27.00 to the club. 
 
NEXT MEETING:  MAY 20th BOB’S GARAGE IN FRANKFORT.    
 
KEN THANKED those who brought goodies for the meeting and 
Bonnie/Randy for their help. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED:   8:15 with a water pump Tech Talk to Follow. 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED:   
SANDY KALETA,   
SECRETARY. 
 
 



 

 9 

9 

 



 

 10 

10 

Up and coming 2015 Events: 
 

Looking forward into 2015 
Ronald McDonald House      Teen Bridge Center 
 
Shake Down Trip       Spring Trip 
 
Veterans Home       Camp Quality 
 
58th. Annual Hesston Steam & Power Show 2015         Labor Day Sept. 1st 
 
Exposure Trip 2015     Door County WI ?                    September  
 
Newport Hill Climb                                                  October 3rd – 5th    
                                                                  
Fall Trip             

Linnea's celebration of her 65th birthday at the Frankfort Bier Stube along with 
some good friends! 
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A’s R Us 2015 Officers and Staff 

Backfire 

Please send Backfire articles or items 
of interest to: 

E Mail to: taxserviss@att.net 

P.O. Box 3 
Crete, Illinois 60417 

 

 
• President – Ken Chamis 
• Vice President –Randy Senkpeil  
•  Treasure –Jim Wright  
•  Secretary – Sandy Kaleta 
• Newsletter – Phillip Serviss 
• Member Relations – Ken Chamis   
• Web Page – Allen Betschart   
• Parade Coordinator – Wally Ekstrom   
• Director of Safety – Ron Bonneau 
• Nat’l Rep. – Ken Chamis   
• Historian – Ken Chamis 
• Sgt. At Arms Steve Coe   
• Motor Medic - Jon lisota 

Al and Sally from the 
“Mid City Hotel” in 
Bloomington, IL. 


